
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel  
 
Dear Member, 
 
You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
 
Tom Stannard 
Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Monday, 28 November 2022 
 
TIME:  6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members to be held at 5.30 pm) 
 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting.  

 
AGENDA 
 

 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ATTENDING FACE 
TO FACE MEETINGS IN THE SALFORD SUITE.  
 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Apologies for absence  
 

 

2   Declarations of interest  
 

 

3   Manchester North West Quadrant (Karen Cliffe / Bruce Parker / 
Sion Owen-Ellis - National Highways).  
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

4   Continuation of the Trial Period of the E-Scooter Trial in Salford 
(Chris Smith / Andrew Fisher).  
 

(Pages 7 - 14) 

5   Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2022-23 (David Mills).  
 

(Pages 15 - 20) 

6   Minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2022.  
 

(Pages 21 - 24) 

7   Work Programme.  
 

(Pages 25 - 26) 

8   Any other business.  
 

 

9   Date and Time of Next Meeting - Monday 12 December 2022, 
6.00pm.  
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602 
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 

E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Last updated 03.10.22 

Face to face public meetings at Salford Civic Centre  
 
Face to face public meetings are being held in Old Town Hall Building at the Civic 
Centre and currently most meetings are being held in The Salford Suite, the Council 
Chamber and it is hoped in the next couple of months that the committee rooms will 
also be available for public meetings. The venue for each meeting is shown on the 
agenda for each meeting and these are published on the city council website here.   

 

1. Important information for attending public meetings in the Salford Suite  

a. Where to enter the building 
You must enter at the main Reception and report to the Reception Desk.  You will 
be directed to the correct meeting room and given access to the building by the 
member of staff on duty. 
  

For evening meetings, if the Reception is closed, 
please press the out of hours buzzer to gain access. 
This can be found on the metal panel on the stand 
next to the Reception doors.  
 

 
 
 

 

b. Accessible access to the Council Chamber 

The public gallery for the Council Chamber is accessed by a staircase.  If this is 

not suitable for you there are spaces in the council chamber available for the 

public who cannot access the gallery.  To access these spaces, please email 

decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk a few days in advance of the meeting 

(if possible) and the clerk for the meeting will arrange this for you.  

 

2. What to do if you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, including 

COVID-19, and have not taken a COVID-19 test.  

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

• Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have symptoms 

of a respiratory infection, such as COVID-19, and you have a high 

temperature or do not feel well, try to stay at home and avoid contact with 

other people, until you no longer have a high temperature (if you had one) or 

until you no longer feel unwell. 

• If you leave your home while you have symptoms of a respiratory infection, 

and you have a high temperature or feel unwell, the following actions will 

reduce the chance of passing on your infection to others: 

o wearing a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 
face mask 

o avoiding crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, 
or anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated 

o covering your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your 
hands frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser 
after coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or 
handle food and avoid touching your face. 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://sccdemocracy.salford.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19


Last updated 03.10.22 

 

3. What to do if you have a positive COVID-19 test result 

The advice on the gov.uk website says: 

• Try to stay at home and avoid contact with other people if you have a positive 

COVID-19 test result, it is very likely that you have COVID-19 even if you do 

not have any symptoms. You can pass on the infection to others, even if you 

have no symptoms. 

• Many people with COVID-19 will no longer be infectious to others after 5 

days. If you have a positive COVID-19 test result, try to stay at home and 

avoid contact with other people for 5 days after the day you took your test. At 

the end of this period, if you have a high temperature or feel unwell, try to 

follow this advice until you feel well enough to resume normal activities and 

you no longer have a high temperature if you had one. 

• Although many people will no longer be infectious to others after 5 days, 

some people may be infectious to other people for up to 10 days from the 

start of their infection. You should avoid meeting people at higher risk of 

becoming seriously unwell from COVID-19, especially those whose immune 

system means that they are at higher risk of serious illness from COVID-19, 

despite vaccination, for 10 days after the day you took your test. 

• If you leave your home during the 5 days after your positive test result the 

following steps will reduce the chance of passing on COVID-19 to others: 

o wear a well-fitting face covering made with multiple layers or a surgical 

face mask. 

o avoid crowded places such as public transport, large social gatherings, or 

anywhere that is enclosed or poorly ventilated. 

o cover your mouth and nose when you cough or sneeze; wash your hands 

frequently with soap and water for 20 seconds or use hand sanitiser after 

coughing, sneezing and blowing your nose and before you eat or handle 

food; avoid touching your face. 

Page 2

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/people-with-symptoms-of-a-respiratory-infection-including-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-guidance-for-people-whose-immune-system-means-they-are-at-higher-risk


Manchester North 

West Quadrant 

(MNWQ) 

Salford Growth 

and Prosperity 

Scrutiny 

Committee

© 2022 National Highways

28 November 2022

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 3



Manchester North West Quadrant Background

• The Manchester North West Quadrant study 

is investigating how National Highways could 

potentially ease congestion, making journeys 

on the M60 between j8 to j18 more 

dependable. 

• The project was originally one of the 

strategic studies progressed as part of the 

Government’s first Road Investment 

Strategy (RIS1) from 2015 to 2020. 

• The second RIS (RIS2), confirmed that the 

transformational options identified by the 

study would have ‘adverse impacts on local 

communities and represent poor value for 

money’. 

• National Highways was therefore asked to 

identify packages of smaller improvements 

that could be developed in RIS2. 

P
age 4



Manchester North West Quadrant - Timelines

• Once options have been developed, they will be considered, and prioritised alongside other projects for potential inclusion 

in RIS3. 

• The project remains uncommitted until the government finalises the next Road Investment Strategy, expected to be 

published in 2024. 

• Should the project proceed beyond the current stage, we would present to the public and stakeholders the study 

conclusions and options before applying for permission to build the scheme. There would also be an opportunity to make 

representations through any statutory process.

• The diagram below shows where the study is in relation to the delivery process

P
age 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

PART 1 (OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) 

 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 

TO 

GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 

ON  

28TH NOVEMBER 2022

 

TITLE: Continuation of the Trial Period of the E-scooter Trial in Salford

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
A trial of rental e-scooters was proposed by the Department of Transport (DfT) and 
available to any local area that expressed an interest. Salford City Council and 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) submitted to DfT a successful proposal for 
an e-scooter trial in Salford in September 2020. Following a comprehensive two-
stage selection process giving consideration to a range of factors including safety, 
understanding of local issues, data sharing, and vehicle design, Lime were selected 
by the Council to operate the trial and have operated the e-scooters within Salford 
since the start of the trial.  
 
Usage to date has been strong, particularly since the introduction of the Gen4 
scooter with over 450,000 trips being made by 85,000 unique users covering a 
distance of more than 500,000 km to date. Despite high usage, anti-social behaviour 
and vandalism levels have remained low, parking compliance within designated 
zones is extremely high, and there have been only two minor incidents reported. This 
is thanks to a highly collaborative working relationship between the Salford City 
Council, TfGM, Lime, Greater Manchester Police, and several charities and not-for-
profit groups. 
 
The trial was originally scheduled to run for a period of one year ending in October 
2021. The DfT have since extended the trial to March 2022 and then to November 
2022. The DfT have now confirmed that trials will be further extended from 30th 
November 2022 to 30th March 2024 to allow further time for legislation for the use of 
e-scooters to be drafted.  
 

 
 

1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 2 

1.1 The DfT originally proposed the trial of e-scooters in early 2020, inviting local 
authorities to express interest in operating a trial scheme. Salford City Council 
along with TfGM proposed a trial to take place starting in October 2020. 
 

1.2 The trial was initially proposed in three phases, phase 1 being wholly on 
University of Salford campus, phase 2 extending to Media City with use on 
public highways and phase 3 extending the area of operation from the 
University of Salford, Salford Quays to the boarder with Manchester City Centre 
and all areas in between. 

 
1.3 Under the DfT proposal the trials were originally due to last for a period of 12 

months until October 2021, in order that a report on the trials could be drafted 
and sent to ministers to draft legislation for the use of both hired and private e-
scooters, with the anticipation that legislation would shortly follow the conclusion 
of the trial period. 

 
1.4 The trial was subsequently extended from 1st October 2021 to 31 March 2022 

and then until 30th November 2022 so that further time could be given to 
considering the interim DfT report by ministers before drafting legislation.  

 
1.5 The DfT has subsequently confirmed that the trial period has now been 

extended until 30th May 2024 due to a backlog of legislation, with the trial 
carrying on in the same format as previous extensions. 

 
1.6 It was agreed by Strategic Director, for Place at the Property and Regeneration 

briefing on 14th March 2022 that the trial could continue as previously agreed 
with a further extension until November 2022, together with any further 
extensions to the trial period to match any extension of the trial period proposed 
by the DfT. Therefore, no formal decision is required by the Strategic Director to 
increase the length of the trial.  

 
1.7 The Strategic Director, for Place also agreed for an expansion in the e-scooter 

trial area to encompass Weaste and Seedley wards to allow use of the e-
scooters in and around Salford Royal Hospital. This additional phase was 
launched in mid-October 2001 and has seen an increase in the overall use of 
the e-scooters.  

 
1.8 In May 2022 it was agreed to upgrade the scooters in the trial to the Gen4 

model. The main differences between this model and the previous model were: 
 

 Improved GPS and ride technology, 

 Swept back handlebars for a better ride, 

 Dual breaking, rather than a rear foot brake, 

 Dual kickstand to reduce parked scooters from being knocked over, 

 Swappable battery, 
 

1.9 E-Scooters provide a flexible and green alternative mode of travel for shorter 
trips, particularly first and last journey trips connecting to transport hubs and 
local attractions. The Salford e-scooter trial has improved accessibility between 

Page 8



 3 

the University of Salford, central Salford, and MediaCityUK, enabling student, 
residents and visitors to easily get around the borough and stimulating a green 
restart to the local economy.  
 

1.10 In addition to a comprehensive DfT monitoring and evaluation programme, 
TfGM and the University of Salford’s Sustainable Housing and Urban Studies 
Unit and Healthy Active Cities research group has carried out a survey of riders 
to provide greater insight into the impacts of micro mobility schemes in the city-
region. The University of Salford have issued a report of their study on users of 
the e-scooters and the perception of e-scooters to member of the public.  

 
1.11 Lime currently operates up to 500 e-scooters at any one time, although this 

figure will always be lower due to e-scooters retained for routine maintenance. 
This figure was increased in May 2022 following the introduction of the new 
model and the expansion of the trial area. 

  
1.12 Initially Salford City Council were the only authority within Greater Manchester 

to trial the use of e-scooters. Rochdale have since followed Salford’s lead and 
set up a similar scheme in March 2021, also partnering with Lime. Although this 
scheme was not extended following the March 2022 extension. 

 
2.0 OVERVIEW OF TRIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
2.1 The availability of this new mode in Salford has proved very popular, evidenced 

by high levels of usage and independent research conducted by the University 
of Salford and supplements restricted public transport capacity in the wake of 
the COVID-19 pandemic, while offering a way to travel that is naturally socially 
distanced. 

 
2.2 Since October 2020, the trial has expanded in phases, starting with the 

University of Salford Peel Park campus, and now covering a 14km2 area to the 
east of the city bounded by the Manchester-Salford border, the River Irwell, and 
east to the Salford Royal Hospital.  

 
2.3 To date, more than 180,000 trips have been made in Salford through the 

scheme, by over 50,000 users, covering a distance of more than 325,000km. 
Lime has reported that of the daily trips over 90% are made by existing users. 
Showing that some users are using the e-scooters as a regular preferred mode 
of transport. 

 
2.4 There has been a high utilisation rate of 3.7 trips per vehicle per day, which 

compares favourably with more established micromobility sharing schemes 
such as the Santander Cycle Hire scheme in London that has utilisation rates of 
around 2.4 per e-scooter per day. The average distance for trips is 1.5km, while 
the average duration is around 19 minutes, an average speed of 6kph.  

 
2.5 The scheme requires users to end their journeys in designated ‘virtual docks’, 

enabled through on-board GPS tracking, and parking compliance has been over 

Page 9



 4 

90%. We are looking into making parking bays more visible to indicate that they 
are for hired e-scooters to help further promote parking compliance. 

 
2.6 As part of the trial where the use of e-scooters were permitted on a shared 

footway with the permittance of pedal cycles, we were advised that a new 
ETRO would be required for the use of e-scooters. Experimental TRO’s were 
created in November 2020 which allowed the use of e-scooters on the shared 
footways within the trial areas. The original ETROs expired in May 2022 and a 
new ETRO is being progressed.  

 
2.7 Following a discussion with SCC’s legal team it was agreed the most prudent 

way forward was to create a new ETRO which would cover any signed shared 
footway, cycle track or cycle path within Salford, when a scooter is used in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the operator’s hire agreement. This 
will allow for any potential expansion of the trial area in the extended trial period 
without further ETROs.  

 
2.8 When any permeant legislation is introduced a full review of the ETO and TROs 

within Salford will be carried out to see how any future hire scheme can be 
operated with approved legislation. 

 
2.9 The most popular routes are between Middlewood Locks and Chapel Street, as 

well as between the University of Salford’s Fredrick Road campus and 
Manchester City Centre boarder. We are working with Lime, Peel,  and highway 
officers to increase parking locations in and around Salford Quays to try and 
encourage more trips to Salford Quays. Once the Trafford Road cycleway 
works are complete this will also allow further trips to be made to Salford 
Quays.  

 
2.10 Lime have agreed with Salford Royal Hospital to operate the e-scooters within 

the campus. The new expanded area will give hospital works and patients an 
additional travel option to the hospital, as well as opening up further areas for 
use. Following discussions with the hospital they are looking to promote the use 
of e-scooters in March when the weather improves. 

 
2.11 The trial has had only a few minor issues, with regards to theft, vandalism and 

antisocial riding. Lime have a team of rangers, who constantly monitor the e-
scooters a, collect e-scooters when their battery needs recharging, as well as 
moving any e-scooters not parked correctly back to the correct parking 
locations. Lime have managed to recover e-scooters taken out of the trial zone 
with the aid of the GPS tracking within each e-scooter.  

 
2.12 Where riders have been seen to be using the e-scooters without the proper 

license requirements or have been riding the e-scooters in an inappropriate 
manner, riders have been either given a warning or had their account blocked if 
required. 

2.13 With the introduction of Gen4 scooter with the swappable battery, there has 
been an increase in battery thefts from scooters. Lime have been working GMP 
to help identify those responsible and reduce the number of incidents. 

Page 10



 5 

 
2.14  We have had only a handful of complaints from members of the public. These 

seem to stem from April/May 2021 onwards, and reflect the extended 
operational areas, the increase in the number of e-scooters being made 
available along with the reduction in stay at home requirements. Lime has 
responded to complaints and reduced the number of e-scooters in certain areas 
at certain times of the day to reduce issues with members of the public.  

 
2.15 The complaints seem to be very general in nature, rather than any specific 

incidents, mainly regarding pavement riding and a few issues with the pavement 
parking. While riders are given information as to how to ride the e-scooters and 
where to ride them, it is difficult to enforce the issue of pavement use.  

 
2.16 It should also be noted that while we have had complaints about inappropriate 

e-scooter use, when these when looked into a majority of the complaints are 
linked to privately owned e-scooters, rather than the Lime scooters (which are 
white rather than the more common black models). All of the e-scooters have a 
3 or 4 digit number so that any issues with a specific e-scooter can be reported 
back to Lime directly. Any person reporting a complaint are asked to make a 
note of the time and location of any specific incidents and feed the back to Lime 
directly to be investigated. 

 
2.17 SCC’s ETA cycle lane schemes and other on street improvements, have 

provided further traffic free routes that e-scooter riders can also utilise.  Lime 
are additionally working on post ride pavement detection software, which will 
allow specific messaging to be directed at any riders that are seen to be riding 
on pavements.   

 
2.18 A review of the e-scooter parking locations has been carried out it was found 

that the majority of e-scooters where parked appropriately, with a few instances 
of e-scooters being parked outside of the bays. SCC have and are continuing to 
work with Lime to try and identify further parking locations which are 
appropriate, being on a wide footway where they will not be placed within the 
natural path of pedestrians using the footway to cause an obstruction. 

 
2.19 We have seen only two reported accidents associated with the e-scooter use. 

With one involving a rider being knocked off while passing in between standing 
traffic and a further incident of a rider travelling in the cycle lane on Chapel 
Street and was knocked off by a pedal cycle rider travelling in the wrong 
direction. All incidents are reported to the DfT as part of the ongoing monthly 
reporting process. 

 
2.20 Lime and the University of Salford have organised first ride events for new 

students at the start of each academic year. The first ride events have helped 
students to familiarise themselves with the e-scooters as well educate them to 
the laws surrounding the use of the e-scooters on the road.  

2.21 SCC have worked with trading standards, where we have found that private 
companies are operating an e-scooter business within Greater manchester. 
This has helped to educate the private business to the requirements of the 

Page 11



 6 

usage of e-scooters on the public highway and reduce the number of private e-
scooters operating in Salford.  

 
2.22 Greater Manchester Police have also focused on the use of private e-scooters 

on the public highways. A number of e-scooters have been seized by GMP, with 
targeted media campaigns to highlight the fact that the usage of private e-
scooters is illegal without the landowners’ consent. 

 
3.0 Next Step for the Trial 
 
3.1   As stated above the trial has been extended until 31st May 2024 in order to 

provide enough time to enable legislation to be formulated and agreed by 
central government. It is unclear what will happen if this date is reached, and 
legislation has not been enacted. It is anticipated that the trial within Salford will 
continue until this date with further decisions with regards to the trial being 
made closer to the end of the trial period. 

 
3.2  A new ETRO will be created to cover any future expansion of the trial area within 

Salford. The original trial agreed with the DfT an operational area that covered 
the whole of Salford, in order that future expansions could take place. The 
ETRO will last until the end of the new extended trial period. It is anticipated that 
permeant legislation will be in place following this period and a review of the 
requirements for TROs regarding the use of e-scooters, both publicly hired and 
private use will be carried out.  

 
3.3  We are looking expanding the operational area along Eccles New Road to link 

Weaste and expanding into Eccles town centre, as well as a link to the train 
station from the hospital. We are currently waiting for Road Safety Officers to 
carry out a risk assessment to help understand any potential risk of using the 
scooters over the tram tracks at Weaste Metrolink stop and along the Eccles 
New Road route. 

 
3.4  Consideration has also been given to other potential area within Salford that the 

scheme could expand to, and these will be discussed with the Lead Member as 
and when they have been identified. 

 
3.5  TfGM hold their disability reference group meeting once every three weeks, 

where any issues which may affect those with disabilities are discussed. Lime 
and other operators are looking at trialling e-scooters with a sound to warn 
pedestrians close by the  scooter’s operation.  

 
3.6   Lime are developing a parking stand which we are looking to trial in key 

locations to help with parking. Scooters would be placed within the stand 
although the stand would not have mechanisms to lock the scooters to the 
stand. While the stands can help to minimalise scooters parked outside the 
parking bays they would reduce the number of scooters that could be parked in 
any location.  

 

Page 12



 7 

3.7  We are also working with Lime, Road Safety Officers and colleagues from 
Parking Services to see where we could trial an on highways parking bay rather 
than location parking bays on the adopted pavement as the current 
arrangement. 

 
 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  TEL NO:  
Andrew Fisher   0161 779 640 

 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
ALL 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
PART 1 (OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) 
 
 

   
 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR FOR PLACE 
  

 

TO GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 
ON 28TH NOVEMBER 2022.  

 
 
TITLE:  REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING 2022/23 
  
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 

It is recommended that the Panel: 
 

 Note the current position and forecasted position to year end for the Service Group’s revenue 
and capital budget. 

 

 Note further measures to bring forecast expenditure back in line with the budget. 
     
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 

(a) Revenue forecast 
The Service Group budget for 2022/23 is forecast to balance at year end. 
 

(b) Capital 
The Service Group programme budget for 2022/23 is £197.938m.  
 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 SAP general ledger and BI reports 

 Various documents held on the accountancy team 
 

  
CONTACT OFFICERS:  
 
David R Mills 07990 977 388 david.mills@salford.gov.uk 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  High  
 
Key risks to budgetary control risk are identified in this report.  
 
 
SOURCE OF FUNDING: Sections in this report consider the revenue budget. 
 
 
LEGAL ADVICE OBTAINED: Not applicable 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5

mailto:david.mills@salford.gov.uk


 
FINANCIAL ADVICE OBTAINED:   This report concerns key aspects of the Council’s revenue 
finances and has been produced by the Finance division. 
 
 
WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): None specifically 
   
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 2022/23 revenue budget. 
 
 

1   Introduction 

 
1.1   This report is set out in three main sections: 

• Section 2 sets out the current position of expenditure against the revenue budget 
and forecasts the year end position, highlighting any risks/sensitivities. 
 

• Section 3 provides an update of the capital programme. 

 

2      Revenue Budget 

2.1 The current position and year end forecast are set out in Table A below.  

Expenditure data reflects salaries and other expenditure up to 30/09/2022 
 

2.2 Table A: Revenue budget to September 2022 
 

 

  

2.3 Risks and Opportunities 
 

Set out below are those areas which have been identified as currently representing the 
greatest risks and potential opportunities in budgetary control. These include areas where 
there is a high current and/or projected variance.  

  
It is expected that the service will have a balanced position at year end. 
 
However, it must be noted that due to continued inflation and price increases, the level of 
uncertainty and risk has increased. The service together with the support of finance are 
working closely to report the figures as accurately as possible. 

 
 
 

Consolidated figures

Annual 

Budget

£'000

Forecast 

Outturn 

£'000

Forecast 

Variation

£'000

Risk assessment

Planning & Transport 12,619          11,605          1,014           Green

Housing, Comm & Neighbour 1,347            1,305            42                 Green

Environment & Comm Safety 21,330          21,896          (566) Red

Culture & Leisure 6,688            6,710            (23) Red

Regeneration 2,596            2,502            94                 Green

Property (709) (148) (561) Red

Total 43,870          43,870          0                    

Page 16



Planning and Transport 
 
The underspend on Planning & Transport is predominantly as a result of Urban Vision, now 
Technical Services being brought back in house.  
 
Bus lane enforcement surplus income, the camera on Victoria Bridge Street, remains 
contributing to the overall balanced position however, to a lesser degree than in 2021/22. 
 
Parking income does appear to be showing improvement especially since new machines have 
been installed, although still not  to pre-covid levels. 

 
Environment and Community Safety 
 
Environment & Community Safety group continues to feel the pressure of Covid-19 and 
inflationary pressures. 
 
Whilst income on the school catering account has improved, food increases has offset this 
positive effect.  Increased fuel costs are impacting on other services such as waste, street 
cleansing and grounds maintenance and will be monitored closely with the service. 
 
The waste service position has been affected by the outcome of a job evaluation which has 
significantly impacted on the financial position of the service. However, this should be 
balanced against job satisfaction and retention. 
 
Finance and service colleagues are reviewing the charge out rates for the grounds 
maintenance account with a view to these being implemented, this should reduce the 
overspend on the account. 
 
Property 
 
Pressures that remain on Salford University Park and Salford Innovation Forum, as well as on 
the Quays due to Peel serving notice on the service charge. 
 
Energy Costs – for note 
 
It is expected that pressure will increase with regard to energy costs in the service. The 
additional cost will, in 2022/23 be balanced from corporate but it should be noted that costs 
are increasing as shown in the table below. It should be noted that as a result of recent budget 
and spending proposals issued by HM Government it is expected that the corporate electricity 
cost and corporate gas cost will improve: 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Budget 2022/23

Forecast spend for 

2022/23 based on 

contract renewal

Estimated spend for 

2023/24 based on any 

increased increase in 

price or Contract 

renewal

Comments 

regarding future 

contract renewals

Shortfall against 

budget 2022/23

Corporate 

Electricity Cost
               1,461,355                     4,981,082                        6,065,325 Oct-23 -          3,519,727 

Corporate Gas 

Cost
                  634,751                     2,405,871                        2,466,018 Jul-23 -          1,771,120 

Unmetered street 

lighting Electricity 

Cost

               1,357,386 1,368,413                                          4,076,940 Apr-23 -               11,027 

3,453,492               8,755,366                   12,608,283                     5,301,874-           

Page 17



Capital 
 

3.1  This section advises the Panel of developments regarding the Place capital programme, which 
as of September totals £197.938m.  

 
3.2 Place Capital Programme 2022/23 
 
 The current Place Capital programme and expenditure to September is set out in Table B, which 

totals £31.469m.  
 
 Table B – Place Capital Programme 2022/23 (£m) 
 

 
 

3.3 Scheme re-profiles for delivery in subsequent years  
 
 At the request of the Corporate Capital Working Group the service is currently undertaking a 

review of the plan for 2022-23 to ascertain what should be reprofiled into subsequent years. 
Additional work is on-going to provide an indicative plan for spend in 2023-24 and 2024-25. This, 
together with the reprofiled 2022-23 will be presented as a report in the autumn. 

 
3.4  Adjustment to the programme   
 
 The Place Property programme has been increased by £0.380m, which reflects an approved 

virement of Invest to Save resource for the renovation of the esports studio at HOST. 
 

4. Recommendation 

The Panel is requested to note the current position regarding the 2022/23 capital programme, 
and the proposal to re-profile the current year together with additional indicative spending for 
subsequent years.  

Total Self 

financing / 

Invest to 

save

Total 

Unsupported Total Grant 

Total 

Contributions 

(inc. capital 

receipts)

Total Approved 

Programme

Total Spend 

to end of 

September 

2022

Place

Environment 0.004 2.859 0.014 0.613 3.490 0.337

Highways 0.000 8.051 8.508 0.170 16.730 2.400

Housing - Regulatory Services 3.216 0.265 0.050 3.531 0.425

Housing Strategy and Enabling 44.472 9.430 52.111 106.013 13.296

Infrastructure 0.000 4.151 18.573 1.354 24.078 8.345

Low carbon 3.558 0.871 2.258 0.000 6.687 0.091

Property 10.305 9.978 0.633 0.002 20.919 4.634

Regeneration 5.171 8.346 0.089 13.605 1.729

Salford Community Leisure 1.700 1.057 0.128 2.885 0.212

Grand Total 58.340 45.425 91.766 2.407 197.938 31.469

Page 18



 

 
Appendix 1 
 
Place Capital Programme 2022/23 (£m) 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 Total Self 

financing / 

Invest to save 

 Total 

Unsupported  Total Grant  

 Total 

Contributions 

(inc. capital 

receipts) 

 Total Approved 

Programme 

 Total Spend 

to end of 

September 

2022 

 Place 

 Environment 

 Bereavement              0.051                   -                     0.051             0.032 

 Essential equipment for service delivery               0.129                   -                     0.129             0.067 

 Greenspace & Streetscene Infrastructure              0.663            0.004               0.133                   0.799             0.110 

 Operational Division Schemes                0.004              2.014                   -                     2.018             0.038 

 Parks Improvement Schemes              0.002            0.011               0.480                   0.493             0.090 

 Environment Total                0.004              2.859            0.014               0.613                   3.490             0.337 

 Highways 

 Block 3                       -              5.045               0.031                   5.075 

 Capitalisation of Highways Maintenance                       -                1.980                   1.980                    -   

 Construction schemes                       -                0.229            0.555               0.140                   0.924             0.341 

 Crash Barrier Programme (S)                       -                0.262                   -                     0.262             0.000 

 Fleet Replacement - Highways vehicles                       -                0.609                   -                     0.609             0.302 

 Flood Risk Management (DIP / CIP)                       -                0.274                   -                     0.274             0.070 

 Highways Investment Programme                       -                1.552            1.098                   2.650             1.462 

 Highways Network Management                       -                0.032                   -                     0.032                    -   

 Lester Road Carriageway Refurbishment               0.525            1.175                   1.700             0.024 

 Lighting Programme (High Mast)                       -                0.055                   -                     0.055             0.128 

 Signs and Bollards                       -                0.117                   -                     0.117             0.004 

 Structures                        -                2.418            0.635                   3.053             0.070 

 Highways Total                       -                8.051            8.508               0.170                 16.730             2.400 

 Housing - Regulatory Services 

 Empty properties              0.413            0.156                   0.569             0.000 

 Former HMR CPO              0.088                   -                     0.088             0.001 

 Home Improvement Agency              0.331                   -                     0.331             0.030 

 Housing crime reduction              0.154                   -                     0.154             0.062 

 Housing enforcement              1.000                   -                     1.000             0.128 

 Housing project costs              0.606                   -                     0.606                    -   

 Salford Money Line / Loan products              0.066                   -                     0.066                    -   

 Winter Welfare              0.126                   -                     0.126             0.001 

 Warm Home Investment Team            0.090               0.050                   0.140                    -   

 Housing - Regulatory Services Total              3.216            0.265               0.050                   3.531             0.425 

 Housing Strategy and Enabling 

 Creating a new Pendleton                       -                0.415                   -                     0.415             0.001 

 Derive                2.981              2.666                   -                     5.647             3.412 

 Disabled Facilities work                       -                       -                     -                            -               0.015 

 Housing Delivery and Development              35.804              2.209         46.418                 84.430             5.716 

 Housing strategy capitalised costs                       -                0.140                   -                     0.140                    -   

 HRA new builds                5.687                     -              5.693                 11.380             4.152 

 Pendleton Concierge service transfer                       -                       -                     -                            -                      -   

 Tower block safety works                       -                4.000                   -                     4.000                    -   

 Housing Strategy and Enabling Total              44.472              9.430         52.111               106.013           13.296 

 Infrastructure 

 Pre-Imp Infrastructure              0.111            0.005                      -                     0.116             0.040 

 Quays Media City Trafford Rd Corridor Project              3.221            2.422               1.354                   6.997             3.945 

 Strategic Connections                       -                0.399         16.108                      -                   16.507             4.297 

 Western Gateway              0.420            0.039                      -                     0.458             0.062 

 Infrastructure Total                       -                4.151         18.573               1.354                 24.078             8.345 

Page 19



 
 

 

 

 Total Self 

financing / 

Invest to save 

 Total 

Unsupported  Total Grant  

 Total 

Contributions 

(inc. capital 

receipts) 

 Total Approved 

Programme 

 Total Spend 

to end of 

September 

2022 

 Low carbon 

 Kenyon Way solar farm & Charlestown weir 

hydro (ERDF programme)                2.189                     -              0.984                      -                     3.173             0.029 

 Unlocking Clean Energy                1.369              0.528            1.274                      -                     3.171             0.062 

 Zero carbon pipeline development              0.343                   -                        -                     0.343 

 Low carbon Total                3.558              0.871            2.258                      -                     6.687             0.091 

 Property 

 100 Embankment                6.624                     -                     -                        -                     6.624                    -   

 Buile Hill mansion               0.700                   -                        -                     0.700                    -   

 Carbon management programme & Energy 

Manager                3.301              0.089                   -                        -                     3.389             2.223 

 MyWork - civic ventilation              0.625                   -                        -                     0.625                    -   

 Property - General                 0.380              2.532                   -                 0.002                   2.914             0.862 

 Property - New Premises              0.700                   -                        -                     0.700                    -   

 Property capitalised salaries              0.275                   -                        -                     0.275             0.015 

 Public Sector Decarbonisation                       -                0.393            0.633                      -                     1.026             1.533 

 Property Acquisition Fund              4.665                   -                        -                     4.665                    -   

 Property Total              10.305              9.978            0.633               0.002                 20.919             4.634 

 Regeneration  

 Capitalised Salaries              1.257                   -                        -                     1.257 

 City Centre Salford              0.793            7.421                   8.214             1.255 

 Innovation Pipeline Development              0.100                   -                     0.100 

 Pre-Imp Development              0.315                   0.315             0.090 

 Quays and Media City UK              1.304            0.111               0.065                   1.480             0.206 

 RHS Bridgewater              0.933            0.813                      -                     1.747             0.133 

 Strategic Place Making              0.118                   -                 0.008                   0.126 

 Town centres              0.351                   -                 0.016                   0.367             0.046 

 Regeneration  Total              5.171            8.346               0.089                 13.605             1.729 

 Salford Community Leisure 

 Brookhouse Changing Rooms              0.027                   -                     0.027                    -   

 Building ventilation                   -                 0.088                   0.088             0.049 

 Cleavley track - Synthetic Track Repair              0.019                   -                     0.019                    -   

 Cultural Development Schemes              0.535            0.247               0.003                   0.785             0.101 

 Leisure Centre Equipment                   -                            -               0.022 

 Ordsall Futsal              0.008                   -                 0.008                   0.015 -           0.002 

 Outdoor Sports - Grass Playing Piches              0.140            0.140                   0.280                    -   

 Pendleton Leisure Centre              0.891            0.670                   1.561             0.042 

 Salford Roosters Changing Rooms              0.078               0.010                   0.088                    -   

 Salford Sports Village                   -                 0.019                   0.019                    -   

 SCL IT Equipment              0.003                   -                     0.003                    -   

 Salford Community Leisure Total              1.700            1.057               0.128                   2.885             0.212 

 Place Total              58.340            45.425         91.766               2.407               197.938           31.469 

 Grand Total              58.340            45.425         91.766               2.407               197.938           31.469 

Page 20



Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 

Held on Monday 24th October 2022 6pm - 7:45pm, in The Salford Suite, Civic 

Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton. 

Present: 

Councillor Sharpe (in the chair) 
Councillors Brabiner, Brooks, Garrido (R), Nelson, Pevitt, Shama and Ward. 
 
Officers: 
Matt Ainsworth – Assistant Director Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy 
Peter Openshaw - Assistant Director Environment & Community safety 
Jim Wensley – Assistant Director Regeneration 
Liz Wright – Democratic Services 
 

1. Apologies for absence 

Apologies of absence were received from Councillors Stuart Dickman, Kate Lewis, 

Sophia Linden and Mishal Saeed. 

2. Declarations of interest 

Councillor Mike Pevitt declared that he was an employee at Salford College. 

3. Skills, Work and Inclusive Economy 

The Assistant Director Skills, Work & Inclusive Economy (Matt Ainsworth) gave a 

presentation that highlighted the following: 

 Background to skills, work and inclusive economy. 

 Skills & Work strategy, delivery & investment plan 

 Key data summary 

 Skills & work priorities 

o Priority 1: Reduce long term unemployment and economic inactivity 

o Priority 2: Improve the attainment of Young People 

o Priority 3: help more residents to enter well paid work. 

o Priority 4: reduce local skills shortage vacancies 

o Priority 5: Improve adult skills 

o Priority 6: Grow self-employment 

 Prioritisation for non-financed recommendations 

 Prioritisation for non-financed actions 

 Action prioritisation:  Non-financial 

 Draft business case for investment 

 Implementation 

 Next steps 

 Data & analysis appendices 

The Chair invited questions and comments from members and the following 

discussion was held. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



 There was a concern and disappointment expressed that the report dealt with 

setting the scene but provide less in terms of practical actions.  It was 

commented that there was not a lot of new information in the presentation and 

that members had hoped to see details of the priorities and the practical actions 

that had taken place or were proposed, for example how Maths and English 

attainment and skills would be improved and how young people would be helped 

to access careers advice and jobs and training opportunities.  

 There was concern that there had been significant money spent on this area in 

the last few years and it was difficult to see the impact.  It was explained that the 

presentation outlined the investment plan and that the three year delivery plan 

(containing the detail members were seeking) would follow.  

 It was reported that currently the national career’s service was not adequately 

funded. Careers advice was provided in all schools and the quality of provision 

was varied. The influence of the council on this provision was limited especially in 

academies. 

 The requirement for a focus on school provision was highlighted for young people 

to be able to acquire L3 qualifications for access to well paid jobs.  The 

importance of having more of a focus on vocational qualifications/apprenticeships 

was highlighted as a route to enable more young people in Salford to access 

education and training at L3. It was confirmed that there would be a separate 

plan around school provision and this strategy focused on adults. 

 Concern was expressed that young people from Salford were not benefiting from 

the jobs and opportunities available in Salford and in areas such as The Quays 

and that there was a risk of the city becoming polarised in terms of the access to 

opportunities, with the poorer communities/wards, with most need, most likely to 

miss out.  It was highlighted that community reach and engagement would be 

integral to the learning and guidance support.   

 The demographics from the 2021 census and the impact on the strategy was 

discussed.  Concern was expressed about the lack of detail around inclusivity 

and that vulnerable groups and BAME groups were not specifically mentioned.  It 

was confirmed that this area would be strengthened in the final version of the 

strategy.  It was proposed that the final report would come back to the scrutiny 

panel in November.  

 It was asked what lessons had been learnt from what the council had previously 

done and also how would this project be monitored and evaluated.  It was 

reported that there had been learning from what had been done in by the council 

and the example of community learning was highlighted.  The decrease in 

available funding locally and the need now to influence commissioning at a 

national level via the DfE was highlighted.  In terms of monitoring and evaluating 

scheme, this was being developed. 

 Long term unemployment was highlighted as a significant issue and it was 

confirmed that this would be addressed in the strategy via both support for mental 

health and careers and jobs advice and guidance.  

 There was concern expressed and a discussion about the use of consultants for 

developing the strategy and the cost of using them.   

Page 22



 A question was asked about how the council was performing in terms of 

recruitment in the local area and helping residents access job opportunities. It 

was explained that the council was refreshing its recruitment policy to address 

this and to reflect initiatives in other councils, such as Manchester, where for 

example jobs up to certain levels were only advertised in Manchester.   

 There was a concern expressed that the strategy was not transformational.  It 

was explained that the consultants had worked impartiality with stakeholders and 

held open and honest conversations that were cross referenced with the data and 

that the strategy was developed from this.   

 It was requested that the following issues be included and/or made more 

prominent in the strategy before it was presented to Cabinet for approval: 

o co-production with stakeholders to be used (it was recognised that this could 

be used for the delivery of the strategy); 

o links with housing and education to be made more explicit in the final strategy; 

o entrepreneurialism to be included/have more emphasis 

o mentoring  

o employer engagement in career advice services. 

4. Work programme 

 It was agreed to hold an extra meeting in December to be able to address all 

items on the work programme. 

 The agenda items for the November and December meetings were agreed as 

follows: 

 

28th November 2022 1. Attendance by National Highways 
2. Highways Investment Programme 
3. Budget Monitoring Report 

 

12th December 2022 1. Update on Zero Carbon and Climate Change 
Programme Overview 

2. Cycling and E-Scooters – roll out to the west of the 
city 

3. Update on Flooding in Worsley and Irlam 
 

 

 Members were asked to send their questions for National Highways 

representative to the clerk Claire Edwards in advance of the November meeting. 

Resolved:  That: 

 An extra meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel be held on 

12th December at 6pm; 

 The work programme be amended as shown above; 

 Members provide any questions for the National Highways representative 

in advance of the November meeting to the clerk. 

 

Page 23



5. Minutes of the previous meeting 

Resolved: That, the minutes of the meeting held on 26th September 2022 be 

approved. 

6. Any other business 

There were no items of any other business. 

7. Date and Time of the next meeting  

Resolved:  That,  

 the next meeting of the growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel would be held in the 

Salford Suite on Monday 28th November at 6pm; 

 an extra meeting would be held on Monday 12th December 2022 at 6pm. 

 

Page 24



 

 
 

GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL - WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23 AS AT 22/11/22 
 

 
Date  
 

 
Agenda Item(s) 

 
Presenting Officer(s) 

12/12/22, 
6.00pm 

 Zero Carbon and Climate Change Programme Overview 
 

 Update on Flooding in Worsley and Irlam - TBC 
 

 Highways Investment Programme – to be considered at a future meeting 
 

James Shuttleworth 
 
Matt Ryan 
 
Steve Mangan / Rob Owen 

2023 
23/01/23, 
6.00pm 

 Bus Franchising 
 
 Homelessness Strategy Update 
 

TfGM 
 
Julie Craik / Marie Donaghey 
 

27/02/22,  
6.00pm 

 Housing Strategy Update 
 
 Derive Update 
 
 Budget Monitoring - Q3 
 

Andrew Leigh 
 
Andrew Leigh 
 
David Mills 

 
ABEYANCE LIST 

 

 Highways Investment Programme. 
 Port Salford. 
 Swinton and Eccles Town Centre Visioning and Progress Update. 
 Registered Housing Providers – update on achievements/challenges. 
 Highway Works (including how the council communicates with the public and how it works with the 

companies delivering works in the city). 
 Buile Hill Mansion / Park 
 Affordable Housing 
 Review of Travel Plans developed through planning applications. 
 Update on Salford University Business Park. 
 

 

 
Portfolio of the Board 

 
Membership (12 Members) 
 

1. Physical regeneration Councillor Brabiner 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



 

 2 

2. Business investment and programmes 
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery 
4. Pendleton PFI 
5. Urban Vision (Transition) 
6. Housing 
7. Environmental sustainability 
8. Climate change 
9. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood authority 
10. To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional area 
 
 
 

Councillor Brooks 
Councillor Dickman 
Councillor R. Garrido 
Councillor Lewis 
Councillor Linden 
Councillor Nelson 
Councillor Pevitt (VC) 
Councillor Saeed 
Councillor Shama 
Councillor Sharpe (C) 
Councillor Ward 

 

P
age 26


	Agenda
	 Guidance for members of the public attending face to face meetings in the Salford Suite.
	3 Manchester North West Quadrant (Karen Cliffe / Bruce Parker / Sion Owen-Ellis - National Highways).
	4 Continuation of the Trial Period of the E-Scooter Trial in Salford (Chris Smith / Andrew Fisher).
	5 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2022-23 (David Mills).
	6 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2022.
	7 Work Programme.

